
Local Planning Agency 

February 24, 2014  Page 1 of 11 

MINUTES REPORT 

LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY 

February 24, 2014 

 

 MEMBERS PRESENT:     

 Noel Andress (Chair)     Jim Ink 

 Jim Green      Rick Joyce (Vice Chair) 

 Mitch Hutchcraft         

  

 MEMBERS ABSENT: 

 Dennis Church 

 David Mulicka 

 

 STAFF PRESENT: 

 Peter Blackwell, Planning    Michael Jacob, Managing Asst. Cty. Atty.  

 Brandon Dunn, Planning     Janet Miller, Recording Secretary  

 Kathie Ebaugh, Planning     Paul O’Connor, Planning Director 

 Tony Palermo, Zoning    Rob Price, Development Services 

 Andy Getch, DOT      

  

Agenda Item 1 and 2 – Call to Order, Review of Affidavit of Publication/Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Mr. Andress, Chair, called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. in the Board Chambers of the Old Lee 

County Courthouse, 2120 Main Street, Fort Myers, FL 33901. 

 

Mr. Michael Jacob, Assistant County Attorney, certified the affidavit of publication and stated it was 

legally sufficient as to form and content. 

 

Agenda Item 3 – Public Forum - None 

 

Agenda Item 4 – Approval of Minutes – January 27, 2014 

 

Mr. Green made a motion to approve the January 27th meeting minutes, seconded by Mr. Joyce.  

The motion was called and passed 5-0. 

 

Agenda Item 5 – Land Development Code Amendments 

 

A. Complete Streets Amendments 
 

Mr. Getch gave an overview of this agenda item and noted it would also be presented to the Land 

Development Code Advisory Committee next month. 

 

Mr. Green asked if this was consistent with the current Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Mr. Getch confirmed it was staff's intent to be consistent with the current Comprehensive Plan.  Staff has 

also anticipated some of the changes that will arise as part of the Transportation Element.  In addition, 

staff realizes there may be some additional changes depending on what comments are received with the 

Transportation Element. 

 



Local Planning Agency 

February 24, 2014  Page 2 of 11 

Mr. Green asked if staff could anticipate what issues the Land Development Code Advisory Committee 

might have with the Transportation Element. 

 

Mr. Getch stated there would be an administrative code for Complete Streets that will take the framework 

of what is in the Land Development Code and expand it further to apply more detail in certain areas.  The 

draft is not ready, but some of the Land Development Code Advisory Committee members have asked to 

see that Administrative Code.   Another concern expressed is in instances where the county is working on 

a retrofit project within an existing street or a developer who might have a significant amount of frontage 

who needs to make street improvements.  What are they required to do?  Are they going to be required to 

fully implement what is in this cross section?  Is there going to be some flexibility?  These types of 

questions will be addressed as part of the Administrative Code.  He noted other comments were more 

wordsmithing type comments, but that they had received a lot of good feedback. 

 

Mr. Andress asked how much flexibility there would be if someone comes in with a project and they want 

to change the parking perpendicular to the curb or diagonal parking instead of parallel parking.  Will they 

be able to do that? 

 

Mr. Getch stated the dimensions in the current code in a typical cross section street are shown as a range 

meaning they are not fixed dimensions.  In other words, it is not where parking would be 8 feet wide.  It 

could be anywhere from 0 up to 20 or 30 feet in some cases.    This is to allow for the difference between 

parallel parking, angle parking, perpendicular parking, wider planting areas, bus pull-offs, etc.  It is also 

staff's intention to allow for other flexibility beyond what currently exists. 

 

Mr. Green felt the LPA might be getting an early look at this.  Due to changes made by the Land 

Development Code Advisory Committee, he asked if this might come back before the LPA. 

 

Mr. O'Connor stated it would if staff deemed the changes to be significant.  However, if the changes are 

not of a substantive matter, it will not be rescheduled to come before the LPA. 

 

Mr. Joyce stated he noticed that drainage had not changed as part of the complete streets amendment.  He 

felt we were missing a big opportunity to improve stormwater and surface water systems by taking a look 

at how we build these "chain link fence rectangles" along roadways.  He felt they were an integral part of 

Complete Streets.  He requested this be a consideration for the future.  He was not necessarily looking to 

take more space to treat water, but utilizing the space better.  Regarding the cross sections, he felt utilities 

were missing.  When people are working on a number of projects, the sewage has to be a certain amount 

of feet away from water, and there may also be gas lines in place.  All of that blends into those cross 

sections and can change how you do or do not plant trees and how you design new roadways.  There 

needs to be a better opportunity to lay those plans out and get a better cross section that makes the utility 

lines more accessible in the future.  Regarding the landscaped part of this document, it states that trees 

must be a minimum of 10 feet.  The language is taken directly from Chapter 10 of the Land Development 

Code.  However, he did not feel it had a place in Complete Streets as it should be predicated by the 

designer.  He gave an example of the pine trees planted along Veteran's Parkway.  None of those trees 

were 10 feet tall, yet you would not want to preclude them because they are not part of this criteria.  In 

some cases, you might want to use 16 foot tall trees.  Although 10 foot tall trees might be a good 

minimum code for commercial projects and required landscaping for other projects, it might not be 

applicable for roadways; therefore, we should have more flexibility. 

 



Local Planning Agency 

February 24, 2014  Page 3 of 11 

Mr. Hutchcraft stated there are frangibility requirements within the medians, so the County might be 

targeting a place where they require a tree that conflicts with that.  He agreed there needs to be 

landscaping requirements, but they should be more flexible.  He also noted there was a fair amount of 

discussion in the document about landscaping.  He asked if they had taken into account how the 

landscaping and lanes fit with the utilities.  If we are to think holistically about streets, utilities have to be 

part of that conversation.  He also noted that in the past public roads were treated in one manner while 

private roads had a little additional flexibility which seems to have been omitted in this proposed 

document.  He questioned whether requiring larger minimum street widths is something we necessarily 

feel is always the best approach.  He also noted that in the Complete Streets document it shows bicycle 

and pedestrian always within the right-of-way.  However, in the educations element viewed last month, it 

encouraged the location of pedestrian/bicycle facilities to be away from the road.  He asked if there was 

the ability to delete that from the requirements of the Complete Streets program. 

 

Mr. Getch stated staff was still working out more details into the Administrative Code.  Language for 

location of developer provided bicycle and pedestrian facilities is in another section of the Land 

Development Code.  The intent is to get the facility, whether it is in a right-of-way or outside of the right-

of-way, publicly maintained.  Staff is working from our current cross sections. 

 

Mr. Hutchcraft referred to Item c. under "On-Street Parking" where it requires authorizations from the 

developer.  He asked if this requirement is due to the assumption that these are county constructed streets.  

He also noted that getting those certificates of liability are problematic. 

 

Mr. Getch explained the rationale behind that item and noted that staff would need to come back and 

modify the language depending on what happens with the transportation policies for parking. 

 

Mr. Andress opened this item for public comment.  Public input was received from Darla LeTourneau, 

Steven Brodkin, and Matthew Uhle.  Commentary from some of the speakers is attached. 

 

Mr. Andress felt staff should make all the changes discussed today, put it together in the Administrative 

Code, and bring it back to the LPA for a final review after the Land Development Code Advisory 

Committee finishes their review. 

 

Mr. Ink made a motion that this item be continued and brought back to the LPA with the 

additional information discussed today such as the administrative part of it that shows the 

flexibility of Development Services to make this a workable, flexible Complete Streets document, 

seconded by Mr. Green.  The motion was called and passed 5-0. 

 

Agenda Item 6 – New Horizon 2035:  Plan Amendments 

 

A. CPA2011-17 Community Safety and Wellbeing Element 

 

Ms. Ebaugh reviewed the EAR schedule for the remaining pending elements. 

 

Mr. Blackwell gave an overview of the staff report. 

 

Mr. Ink referred to Objective 1.1 and Policy 1.1.1 on Page 6 of 37 where staff makes an editorial 

comment about changing "technological" to "manmade" yet in both of those sections "technological 

hazards" is still listed. 

 

Staff stated they would look into that. 



Local Planning Agency 

February 24, 2014  Page 4 of 11 

 

Mr. Ink referred to Objective 1.3 on Page 9 of 37 where it references developments seaward of the 

Coastal Construction Control Line.  However, it does not reference which line (i.e. the 1978 line or 1991 

line).  He also noted this language was in Policy 1.3.1 on the same page. 

 

Mr. Blackwell stated it would be the most recently approved line.  He noted staff had crossed out the 

"1991" reference specifically so that it will always be whatever the most recent Coastal Construction 

Control Line is. 

 

Mr. Ink did not see where it says "the most recent" in the language. 

 

Mr. Blackwell stated it was implicit in the language. 

 

Mr. Joyce felt it was worth putting some clarification language in there such as "the most current" or 

"currently approved." 

 

Mr. Andress was in agreement with that recommendation. 

 

Mr. Ink referred to Policy 1.7.3 on Page 15 of 37 where it requires new residential development of more 

than 50 units to provide continuing information to residents concerning hurricane evacuation.  He felt 

there should be language that encourages all Home Owner Associations and Property Owner Associations 

to address this.  This does not mean it should necessarily be regulated, but it should be encouraged. 

 

Mr. Green was in agreement with this recommendation and did not feel it was something that would be 

burdensome. 

 

Mr. Hutchcraft referred to Policy 1.3.2 on Page 9 of 37 where it is changing from V Zones and Coastal A 

Zones to Hurricane Evacuation Zone A.  He asked if there was a map that shows the change in those 

boundaries.  He also asked if it was in the same area or a more expansive boundary. 

 

Mr. Blackwell stated there was a map that goes with this. 

 

Mr. Hutchcraft referred to Objective 1.5 on Page 11 of 37 where it says, "In order to provide evacuation 

and shelter capabilities adequate to safeguard the public against the effects of hurricanes and tropical 

storms..."  He asked if the County was allowing the construction of on-site evacuation or on-site shelter 

plus evacuation opportunities.  He noted one of the other provisions led him to believe that the 

measurement the County was going to use was evacuating in a land falling storm.  He asked if the County 

was allowing both as we determine our effectiveness meaning our preparedness for a hurricane. 

 

Mr. Blackwell believed "evacuation" was the preferred option and that he believed it was required.  

 

Mr. Hutchcraft recalled that you used to be able to design shelter to address your hurricane preparedness 

yet this policy is saying that people will have to attain out of county evacuation for Level D or E storms. 

 

Mr. Blackwell believed this was now the only option. 

 

Due to a question by Mr. Hutchcraft, Mr. Blackwell gave clarification of Policy 1.8.2 on Page 18 of 37. 

 



Local Planning Agency 

February 24, 2014  Page 5 of 11 

Mr. Hutchcraft stated he appreciated language staff added to Policy 4.1.2 on Page 29 of 37, which was 

due to previous recommendations.  He noted that in all of these elements staff has deleted references to 

"Lee County."  He expressed concern that if these objectives/policies are not directed at staff, they could 

end up being an obligation/burden that gets shifted to private developers. 

 

Mr. O'Connor stated this was a recommendation from the County Attorney's office because this is Lee 

County's Comprehensive Plan.  Therefore, it is not necessary to list "Lee County" throughout all the 

elements. 

 

Mr. Hutchcraft did not believe this would always be the case and was still concerned over this issue.  He 

referred to Policy 4.1.7 on Page 31 of 37 where it encourages redevelopment of existing structures in built 

up areas instead of Greenfield areas.  He felt it was written in such a way that it becomes more than just 

"encouragement;" therefore; he felt there should be some additional flexibility. 

 

Mr. Joyce referred to Objective 2.2 on Page 22 of 37 dealing with Wildfire.   He stated that "Wildfire 

Mitigation" should be defined as it could mean different things.  He also discussed a Certified Pile Burner 

program offered by the Florida Forest Service.  It has not been offered in Lee County, but he felt staff 

should coordinate with the Florida Forest Service so that an annual class could be held especially since 

most wildfires are caused by pile burns. 

 

Mr. Blackwell stated he would talk to Public Safety about this. 

 

Mr. Andress opened this item for public comment.  Public input was received by Larry Nisbet from 

Bayshore Fire and Rescue. 

 

Mr. Green made a motion to transmit CPA2011-17 to the Board of County Commissioners along 

with comments made today by the LPA and public, seconded by Mr. Joyce.  The motion was called 

and passed 5-0. 
 

B. CPA2011-02 Communities Element 

 

Ms. Ebaugh gave an overview of Attachment 1 of this item. 

 

Mr. Andress opened this item for public comment.  Public input was received from Ruby Daniels, Steven 

Brodkin, Dr. Margaret Banyan, Matthew Uhle, Darla LeTourneau, Ann Pierce, and Russell Schropp. 

Commentary from some of the public is attached. 

 

Mr. Green felt comments made by Mr.  Schropp were appropriate. 

 

Mr. Andress felt that all comments received today should be incorporated into the final finding of 

consistency. 

 

Ms. Ebaugh referred to Policy 1.2.2 on Page 4 of 144 under the Intent and Preamble that deals with the 

on-line clearinghouse and recommended deleting the segment that starts with "These communities are..." 

and the reference to the following because staff is working to establish a document database.  There is an 

on-line way to get information.  Staff is working to set it up for all communities, not just the ones listed. 

 

Mr. Ink asked if the missing 19.5.XX was intentional or an oversight. 

 



Local Planning Agency 

February 24, 2014  Page 6 of 11 

Ms. Ebaugh stated that the staff person who was originally assigned this element is no longer with the 

County.  As such, she was uncertain what happened to that language, but had no objection to adding it. 

 

Mr. Andress referred to Policy 5.3.1 on Page 30 of 144 that refers to a map. 

 

Ms. Ebaugh explained that all maps referenced in this document have not been brought before the LPA 

yet. 

 

Mr. Andress asked if there was a map that identified the farmlands on the Island. 

 

Mr. O'Connor stated there was a map currently in the plan. 

 

Mr. Andress referred to Policy 5.4.1 on Page 32 of 144 and asked if we were still using the level of 

service standards and if this policy is still relevant with no concurrency requirement. 

 

Mr. O'Connor stated staff did not make amendments to the Pine Island Plan.  While it is called 

"Concurrency" on Pine Island, it is really a tool being used to address some of the hurricane evacuation 

issues and the issues of the large number of platted yet undeveloped lots that are on the Island.  Because 

of this, staff is proposing to keep the same language. 

 

Mr. Andress noted that Mr. Hutchcraft had specifically asked for some type of direction from the County 

legal staff regarding this issue. 

 

Mr. Jacob stated that determination had not been made. 

 

Mr. Hutchcraft stated the provisions talk about level of service and concurrency.  To the extent that the 

determination has not been made, he did not feel this element was consistent with the Community 

Planning Act.  

 

Mr. Green referred to the table on Page 5.  He asked for a clean up on what the table actually does.  He 

suggested some sort of heading on what this table does.  He also referred to the references that say 

"Planned Developments."  He asked if that was a Development Order. 

 

Mr. O'Connor stated it was a Planned Development Rezoning. 

 

Mr. Green referred to Administrative Amendments that are allowed in Captiva.  He asked if it would be 

acceptable to staff to add them for Northeast Lee County. 

 

Mr. O'Connor stated that if staff can do this for one community, they could do that for another.  This was 

taken from specific language already in the plan, which is how staff derived at the table.  The only 

exception is the Bayshore community, which was joined with Page Park. 

 

Mr. Green asked if there was a problem in adding Development Orders to this. 

 

Mr. O'Connor did not believe any of the communities get Development Orders.  He noted that is an 

administrative process.  If the applicant meets the code, they get the Development Order.  He explained 

there are different levels of Development Orders so it can be voluminous.  There are some that are simple 

so he felt it would be a heavy requirement on some proposed projects to have a public meeting in certain 

areas of the County. 

 



Local Planning Agency 

February 24, 2014  Page 7 of 11 

Mr. Hutchcraft stated that having Administrative Amendments and Development Orders as part of the 

Clearing House is fine, but he was concerned with Administrative Amendments having to have public 

workshops in the community.  He felt this was overkill. 

 

Mr. Green believed the one referred to by Ruby Daniels was "Broadlands," which was 250 homes in 

Alva.  This is a very rural area and it was handled as a Development Order without any requirement for 

presentation to the community.  He felt the County should give some thought to letting the community 

view those.  He recommended there be some way to keep the simple ones out of the requirement, but if 

the project involves 250 homes or more it should be reviewed by the community. 

 

Mr. Andress stated he saw both sides to this.  He felt there must be some limit where 50 homes or more 

need to have some public discussion with the community, but leave out simpler requests such as 

driveways. 

 

Ms. Ebaugh stated staff would look into this. 

 

Mr. Ink stated a Development Order is a technical part where rezonings and planned developments are 

entitlements where you need community input.  He did not know how the County would distinguish 

between 50 lots versus 45 lots.  The intent should be if someone is going to affect their neighbor.  

Someone with two lots will affect their neighbor but it is too restrictive and regulatory to have those go to 

a community meeting, which is becoming a third level of government. 

 

Mr. Joyce recommended having that information available in a database that the community can access.  

It would allow them to talk to the developer/builder about the design.  There is no opportunity for the 

community to involve themselves in the administrative process because it is not set up that way. 

 

Mr. Hutchcraft referred to Page 46 of 144 where it says, "...preferably on tracts 2 1/2 to 5 acres..."  It is 

clear that this is not regulatory.  Below that section in the yellow highlighted area it says, "...Due to the 

flood prone issues and private wells only low residential densities and limited commercial activity are 

appropriate."  Mr. Hutchcraft stated he was in disagreement with this as Compact Development would 

have less impact on flood than spread out development.  It might be their preference, but it is not the only 

development pattern appropriate.  Below that, there is a requirement to only review new developments.  

In subsequent policies it requires the review of new planned developments.  He felt this was a critical 

issue where any development proposed should be evaluated.  If flooding is their issue, a 5-acre lot 

someone is filling or putting a perimeter berm around it can have more impact on sheet flow than a well 

designed planned development.  He asked that staff strike the word "planned" and have it say, "shall 

review new development."  Mr. Hutchcraft referred to the sentence below that says, "Lee County shall 

provide a complete hydrologic review and analysis."  He asked if staff was prepared to do that. 

 

Ms. Ebaugh noted that Roland Ottolini, Director of Natural Resources, accepted this language. 

 

Mr. Hutchcraft referred to Policy 7.1.7 on Page 48 of 144 that says mixed use development is 

inappropriate in the Bayshore Community.  He talked about instances where a veterinarian might have 

his/her operation in the same place as their house.  Someone could have a cafe with the business and 

home together.  It might be appropriate to exclude shops and restaurants, but not all mixed use is 

inappropriate.  Therefore, he felt this policy was inconsistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Mr. Ink felt there could be language that says, "live/work is allowable" since it is a rural type use. 

 

Ms. Ebaugh stated staff could fix Policies 7.1.7 and 7.1.8. 



Local Planning Agency 

February 24, 2014  Page 8 of 11 

 

Mr. Andress stated the LPA had talked about fixing this in the Bayshore Vision. 

 

Ms. Ebaugh stated this was fine. 

 

Mr. Hutchcraft made a motion to find CPA2011-02 Communities Element consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan subject to the following changes:  1) those changes recommended by the 

Horizon Council on their attachment be included; 2) that the LPA find the Tice Policy 19.5.XX 

appropriate; 3) that staff modify the Vision Statement and Policies 7.1.7 and 7.1.8 as discussed; 4) 

that staff modify Policy 1.2.2 regarding the Clearing House as discussed; 5) that staff be required to 

do a full evaluation of the Communities Planning Act of 2011 as it relates to Policies 5.4.1, 5.4.4, and 

5.4.5 of the Pine Island provision; and, 6) that Development Orders be made available on the 

Clearing House, but not require community meetings. 

 

Mr. Andress asked about Policy 17.5.7 and Mr. Ink asked about Policy 19.5.8.  These policies were under 

the Tice section. 

 

Mr. Hutchcraft included in his motion that we will go with staff's recommended language on those 

policies but that staff will provide additional information to the County Commissioners that they 

fully consider the community’s recommendations in the final design.  The motion was seconded by 

Mr. Green for discussion. 

 

Mr. Green stated he was still in favor of the Tice Community's words.  However, he asked if Mr. 

Hutchcraft would revise his motion to say, "The LPA recommends to the County Commissioners that 

the Community's desires be met." 

 

Mr. Hutchcraft stated that was his intent and that he accepts that friendly amendment with the 

understanding that we are still advancing staff's language. 

 

Mr. Joyce referred to Policy 19.5.8 and noted it deals with surface water.  It seemed to him that it would 

be easy to reconcile that with the community. 

 

Ms. Ebaugh stated staff would work with the community and come up with some reconciled language. 

 

The motion was called and passed 5-0. 

 

The LPA convened at 10:50 a.m. and reconvened at 11:00 a.m. 

 

C. CPA2011-13 Transportation Element 

 

Mr. Getch gave an overview of Attachment 1 of this item.  He noted that Josh Philpott from the Port 

Authority, Wayne Gaither from Lee Tran, Rob Price from Development Services, Brandon Dunn from 

Planning, and Don Scott from the Metropolitan Planning Organization were present for today’s meeting 

and that there may be some questions that one of the other attendees will need to answer. 

 

Mr. Hutchcraft referred Policy 2.1.1 on Pages 6 and 7 of 37 where it mentions level of service.  This 

section states that Level of Service E is the minimum acceptable.  He asked what would happen if 

someone had less than that for their project. 

 



Local Planning Agency 

February 24, 2014  Page 9 of 11 

Mr. Getch stated the County would not deny a Development Order based on Level of Service F for the 

multi-modal facility.  The analysis received will hopefully help staff identify what components need to be 

improved in the network (i.e. an improved transit facility, bicycle facility, or pedestrian facility).  There 

are components of the analysis for a Development Order that is submitted which uses pieces of level of 

service such as how long does a left turn lane need to be into a shopping center.  It is a site related 

improvement for that shopping center.  That is one way staff will still use level of service as part of the 

review process, not necessarily from a regulatory standpoint, but how it works into the regulations. 

 

Mr. Hutchcraft referred to Table 1 on Page 7 of 37.  He gave a scenario where someone has property 

zoned Suburban.   They have a good transit solution that could be a bigger part of their project than motor 

vehicle.  Do they have to address motor vehicle or is that merely staff’s default position?  How much 

flexibility is in this table? 

 

Mr. Getch stated that, in terms of development, the level of service is something that would be reported as 

a component of it.  In terms of the infrastructure and system decisions, these would be made by the county 

in providing those public facilities.  At that time, staff would look at this particular priority system.  He 

gave an example of how it is handled in the City of Jacksonville. 

 

Due to a question by Mr. Hutchcraft, Mr. Getch clarified that staff has the flexibility to work on each 

project and come up with the best overall multi-modal solution. 

 

Due to a question by Mr. Hutchcraft regarding Policy 2.4.3 on Page 16 of 37, Mr. Getch explained the 

intent is to outline how the County is going to approach parking regulations.  Specific ideas for what the 

County is going to do in urban areas will be put in the Land Development Code.   

 

Mr. Price stated staff recently updated the Land Development Code to add some reductions in parking 

when you have multiple use scenarios.  One of the things that was in the Complete Streets document that 

was discussed earlier today is that an Administrative Relief in the parking requirement was added when 

there is on-street parking in proximity to your project.  Staff will keep moving forward with some updates 

to that as information is made available.  Staff monitors these situations frequently.  If there are reductions 

to the parking regulations that make sense, staff will propose them. 

 

Mr. Hutchcraft referred to Policy 3.3.2 on Page 28 of 37 where it says, “New roads or expansion of 

existing facilities will not be extended through areas of ecological concern except in instances of 

overriding public interest and unless…”  He asked if this applies to public roads or public and private 

roads.  He stated it might be difficult to demonstrate overriding public interest on a private road. 

 

Mr. Getch stated that policy is not intact as there have been some edits.  There is a similar policy along 

those lines in the current Lee Plan.  The intent was specifically for public roads.  Mr. Getch stated that 

when he worked on this particular policy, it was his intent that it would be specifically for public roads. 

 

Mr. Hutchcraft asked that staff clarify that as he had the same concern as discussed earlier with all 

references to “Lee County” being deleted.  It can become a requirement for everyone when it was not 

initially intended to be so. 

 

Mr. Hutchcraft stated that he felt the motion for this item should be delayed until the LPA jointly reviews 

it with the Future Land Use element. 

 



Local Planning Agency 

February 24, 2014  Page 10 of 11 

Mr. Ink referred to Policy 3.2.7 on Page 24 of 37 and stated he felt it sounded regulatory.  It sounds as if 

there will be some Land Development Code policy or something set forth on how a private development 

will ensure how they will fit into this multi-modal. 

 

Mr. Getch stated this policy is based on and reworded from the policy that currently talks about road 

impact fees. 

 

Mr. Ink asked if we were going from road impact fees to multi-modal fees. 

 

Mr. Getch stated this would be a policy decision made by the Board of County Commissioners.  The first 

step is to develop what is called a mobility plan where staff looks at the needs and what the fee schedule 

might be. 

 

Mr. Ink referred to Policies 4.6.1 and 4.6.2 on page 35 of 37 and noted the items listed in these policies 

seem to be already under construction.  If it turns out that these items are already under construction, Mr. 

Ink asked if these policies still needed to be listed in the document. 

 

Mr. Josh Philpott from Lee County Port Authority stated that Policy 4.6.1 is discussing the I-75 

connection which is under construction. 

 

Staff stated they would look into the issue of whether or not these policies should still be in the Plan. 

 

Mr. Joyce referred to Objective 3.3 on Page 27 of 37 and noted there was no discussion of surface water 

systems within these DOT projects.  He felt this needed some attention especially keeping in mind the 

money the county is spending on surface water improvements throughout the county.  He also stated we 

are still building rectangles with chain link fences and that the County needs to go beyond that on road 

projects.  He suggested some language be added such as “creative surface water design that maximizes 

both storage and quality efficiencies,” so that more energy is spent on these systems other than meeting 

the minimum flow requirements for the district.  Mr. Joyce referred to a section that says, “…innovative 

design of stormwater areas as community amenities…,” which he felt was a good start.  He noted these 

surface water systems are in public spaces and that there have been stormwater ponds that have been 

turned into something that has a gazebo in it making it a nice public space. 

 

Mr. Andress referred to Policy 3.2.2 on Page 23 and asked when the County would be developing the 

long-term transportation strategy mentioned in this policy. 

 

Mr. Getch stated there was no set date on this yet and that it would be something that would take a long 

time to implement.  The revenue source for it will be decided by the Board of County Commissioners.  As 

far as when a plan will be presented, it will be part of the mobility plan mentioned earlier. 

 

Mr. Andress referred to Policy 3.2.7 on Page 24 of 37 and asked how this would be accomplished. 

 

Mr. Getch stated that, under our road impact fee or a mobility fee, a methodology will be developed to 

assess that development share.  Based on a similar policy currently in the plan, a methodology was 

developed that looked at how much of the capacity of the transportation system is consumed by a new 

development and what the cost is for providing a new amount of capacity to replace that existing capacity.  

This is one possible methodology that could be explored under a mobility plan or continued under road 

impact fees. 

 

Mr. Andress asked how the County would get private development involved in that process. 



Local Planning Agency 

February 24, 2014  Page 11 of 11 

 

Mr. Getch stated it would be handled through a very open participation process, which would involve a 

consultant.  A consultant would handle the public interaction portion along with data collection and 

determining the methodology.  He further clarified that this would not necessarily be brought before the 

LPA, but it would be something the County would do through social media such as the County’s mind 

mixer and Lee County Town Hall as well as any other options available. 

 

Mr. Andress referred to Item 3. on Page 25 of 37 and asked if the plan had been vetted with the various 

cities. 

 

Mr. Getch stated the most effective approach to developing a mobility fee and plan is to have it be 

adopted by all the jurisdictions.  One reason for that is the transit system because transit is a component of 

the mobility fees that are in place around the state.  The transit system is county wide and there is as 

much, if not more, service in the incorporated areas as there is in the unincorporated areas.  From that 

standpoint, it needs to be part of the discussion.  The road system is also linked throughout the county and 

the bicycle and pedestrian systems are linked to a lesser extent.  In terms of how this is going to work, the 

County will need to have interlocal agreements with the individual jurisdictions.  If this policy becomes 

part of the new plan, one of the next steps will be to reach out to the cities. 

 

Mr. Andress stated staff did an excellent job of incorporating the LPA’s comments from the last time this 

item appeared before them.  He agreed with a comment made earlier by Mr. Hutchcraft that the motion 

for this item should be to continue it until the LPA has an opportunity to review the Future Land Use 

element rather than find it consistent on its own. 

 

Mr. Andress opened this item for public input.  Public input was received from Darla LeTourneau, Ann 

Pierce, and Russell Schropp.  Commentary from some of the public is attached. 

 

Mr. Green stated his sense was that the LPA generally supports all that was discussed today.  He hoped 

staff would consider comments made by the LPA and the public today. 

 

Mr. Joyce made a motion to continue this item to the March 24th LPA meeting, seconded by Mr. 

Hutchcraft.  The motion was called and passed 5-0. 

 

Agenda Item 7 – Other Business - None 

 

Due to a question by Mr. Joyce, staff explained the process of CSAC reviewing the amendments and their 

schedule versus the LPA’s schedule. 

 

Agenda Item 8 – Adjournment 

 

The next Local Planning Agency meeting is scheduled for Monday, March 24, 2014, at 8:30 a.m. in the 

Board Chambers, Old Lee County Courthouse, 2120 Main Street, Fort Myers, FL 33901. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 12:09 p.m. 




































































































































